
MINUTES OF THE MONTHLY MEETING 
OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ANNAPOLIS 
March 1, 2012   4:08 p.m. 

 
 

Roll Call 
Commissioner Carl O. Snowden, Chair 
Commissioner Cynthia Carter, Vice Chair 
Commissioner Richard Callahan, Treasurer 
Commissioner Phyliss Gibbs 
Commissioner Elizamae Robinson 
Commissioner Deborah A. Johnson  
Commissioner Jeffrey Henderson   
 
Moment of Silent Reflection 
 
Minutes     
 
A motion to approve the minutes as written for the February 16, 2012 Board of 
Commissioners meeting was made by Commissioner Callahan. Commissioner Gibbs 
seconded the motion.  All approved.   
 
Resolutions  
 
Resolution No. MOD 030112-03:  A Resolution awarding a contract for additional repairs to 
a burned unit at Eastport Terrace. 
 
Action: Commissioner Callahan moved to approve MOD 030112-03; Commissioner 
Robinson seconded the motion.  The motion passed unanimously.  
 
Resolution No. Admin 030112-04:  A Resolution to approve or disapprove of a HACA 
Section 8 participant serving as President of the HACA RAB.   
 
Action: Although initially passed by a vote of 3 aye votes and one abstention, Commissioner 
Johnson asked for the resolution to be brought back to the table.  By a unanimous vote, the 
Commissioners requested the resolution be redrafted for more clarity.   
 
City Council Comments   

Alderman Kenny Kirby stated that he is doing what he can to alleviate violence in HACA 
communities. Mr. Kirby stated that he believes APD is aware of who is responsible for the 
recent Harbour House violence but no arrests have been made. He asked for anyone who 
may have information on the crimes to come forward to report what they saw.  Mr. Kirby 
stated that APD is aware that the Harbour House community is getting out of control and that 
he is doing all he can with APD and the Mayor to stem the tide before summer comes. 
 
Ms. Gail Smith of the Mayor’s Office stated that the Mayor has been working on budget 
issues and invited the audience to come to the City Council Chambers for the monthly 
hearing on March 12 at 7:30 p.m.  Ms. Smith also stated that she is happy to be working with 
Ms. Georgia Sherrod, HACA’s new Director of Human Services.  
 
 
 
 

MIN - 1 



Resident Council Comments       
    
Ms. Sandra Chapman, President of the Morris H. Blum Senior Apartments stated that the 
monitors are making sure all guests sign in 100% of the time and that no guest may come 
into the building after midnight unless the resident comes to the desk to escort the guest to 
their unit. Ms. Chapman stated that while prostitution probably continues, it isn’t as open as it 
was. Ms. Chapman also stated that she doesn’t believe the drug problem has been cured. 
Although APD has discussed the problem, they haven’t returned to the residents with a plan. 
Ms. Chapman stated that the next Resident Council meeting will be held on March 22 at 5 
p.m.  She thanked Mr. Leggett for being part of the Resident Council’s recent Black History 
program.  A blues/jazz event with supper is being planned for May. 
 
Ms. Carolyn Keene stated that the David J. Harris Community Center is now open for senior 
citizen activities in the morning hours.  Residents are also able to access the computer lab to 
look for work. Ms. Keene stated that a trip to the Midway Slots is being planned for March 25. 
 
Mr. Ulysses Aiken, Acting Vice President of Harbour House/Eastport stated that he needs 
help in organizing the talent show for children.  He is in need of a definite date for the 
program as well as judges and curtains. He stated that he would like to start auditions soon 
so that the show could take place in June.   
 
General Comments  
Ms. Patricia Holliday, a HACA Section 8 Participant stated that there is a security issue at 
Clay & Bates Streets with drug dealers on the corners and area residents are frightened. 
Commissioner Johnson stated that Pennrose is aware of the problem and that Sharon Brown 
has met with APD. 
 
Robert Eades stated that he is concerned that things he has been working on have been 
pushed aside; he is upset at not being notified by Commissioner Johnson of meetings held at 
Obery Court. He has concerns with Trudy McFall turning public housing properties into 
private development. He is also concerned with the RAB president and stated that he doesn’t 
believe the current RAB president know what her job is. Mr. Eades stated that while he wants 
to work with the Board, he said there are other avenues and that he will go to HUD. 
 
Commissioner Johnson stated that Pennrose has guidelines that must be followed; two 
residents moved out of the community and the resident council was down two officers. She 
stated that they could not function until residents were found who could act as officers. A new 
election has been held and under the new bylaws, the next resident council meeting will be 
held in March. She invited Mr. Eades to attend the meeting. Mr. Eades believes that 
Commissioner Johnson has worked to exclude him from meetings.  Chairman Snowden 
stated that Legal Aide representatives are in the room and suggested Mr. Eades work with 
Legal Aide on his complaints. Chairman Snowden invited Mr. Eades to remain for the 6 p.m. 
Annual and Five Year Plan public hearing.   
 
Chairman Snowden also stated that the HACA Board meeting is not the forum to address 
Pennrose issues and that if HACA is not inviting former Obery Court and College Creek 
residents to attend meetings, that Mr. Eades should use the correct process, including the 
contacting of City Elected officials.   
 
 
 

MIN - 2 



Executive Director’s Report    
 

Vincent O. Leggett stated he and his staff have been working with HUD on the MOU and that 
only four target items remain. 
 
Mr. Leggett stated that the Martha Wood Leadership Award committee named Pastor Sheryl 
Menendez as February’s nominee.  Mr. Leggett further stated that construction at Obery 
Court, Phase II is moving along and that the plywood is on, one building is under roof and 
that the contractor is 30 days ahead of schedule.  
 
Mr. Leggett is working with Morris H. Blum Senior Apartments the Resident Council on the 
implementation of the smoking ban. The staff is developing a response for the Board to 
review. Implementation of the ban on smoking in HACA units is slated to begin July 1, 2012.   
 
Mr. Leggett stated that he continues to work with HACA partners and stakeholders on plans 
that will help HACA stewards become more self-sufficient.   
 
Property Managers Report 

 
 

Mr. Corrie Flannigan, Property Manager at the Morris H. Blum Senior Apartments, stated 
that he is working hard to curb prostitution and other crime in the building.  A new sign-in 
sheet has been created and new security monitors have been hired and trained.  Mr. 
Flannigan stated that the building is 98% with 2 units in MOD and 2 units in Repair-Make 
Ready. Mr. Flannigan stated that Bloomsbury Square community is 100% occupied. 
 
Ms. Veria Horton, Property Manager for the Harbour House community stated that 264 units 
are occupied, 7 are in Repair-Make Ready, and 2 are in MOD.  Ms. Horton is issuing parking 
stickers and photo IDs to residents. Chairman Snowden asked if Ms. Horton shares the 
same perception as Alderman Kirby regarding crime in the neighborhood. Ms. Horton replied 
that the new camera is a help and that there is criminal activity in the area. Chairman 
Snowden asked Ms. Horton how much time she would need to meet all of the stewards in 
the community. Ms. Horton replied that it would take her about another 3 months to meet all 
of the stewards. Chairman Snowden stated that the work we need to do requires that we 
know our stewards. He encouraged Ms. Horton to meet all stewards over the next 90 days. 
 
Ms. Lisa Kopinetz stated that the Eastport Terrace Community has 9 vacancies; 6 units are 
in MOD and 3 are in Repair-make Ready. Ms. Kopinetz stated that she is working and 
encouraging her stewards to perform their necessary community service hours. There are 4 
residents in the 2-4 year bracket who still need to perform their community service hours. 
Ms. Kopinetz will be sending letters to those stewards letting them know they are facing 
eviction. Three stewards have just completed the Adult computer class. 
 
Ms. Demetria Hall stated that Newtowne Twenty community is 94% occupied.  Eleven units 
are in MOD and 2 are in Repair-make Ready status.  Ms. Hall stated that she has been in 
contact with the president of the resident council to advise what programs are available to 
stewards who owe community service hours. Ms. Hall stated that the Robinwood Community 
is 94% occupied with 11 units in MOD and 7 units in Repair-Make ready status. Three units 
will be leased by March 6.  Ms. Hall stated that there are stewards in the community who are 
interested in the Sojourner Douglas program and the GED program.  Ms. Hall stated that she 
is working on the car washing ban notice and will soon present a draft for approval. 
 
 

MIN - 3 



Human Services   

 

Ms. Yvonne Baskerville stated that there are 182 school aged children in the Robinwood 
community. She is also working to identify residents who would benefit from the program 
being offered at Mt. Olive church.  Ms. Baskerville stated that she assisted an area resident 
with finding a job recently. A 12-week Life Skills program will be offered in Robinwood during 
March.  Ms. Baskerville is also working to establish a mentoring program for students.  The 
Resident Council will be offering an Easter Egg hunt. Ms. Baskerville stated that she entered 
into the lottery for tickets to the White House Easter Egg roll.  Chairman Snowden stated that 
he would like a report from Ms. Baskerville and Ms. Hall at the next board meeting on a 
focus group that would hear about the seniors’ concerns.   
 
Leron Fisher stated plans have been solidified to transport parents to the Tyler Heights 
Elementary school PTA meeting in March. The PEEC-Out program will be offered in the 
Robinwood and Harbour House/Eastport Terrace Communities from March- June. Mr. Fisher 
thanked Commissioner Henderson for his contribution to the recent Youth Awards ceremony. 
Mr. Fisher stated that he is working with Ms. Sherrod on an after school mentoring program.   
 
Ms. Rani Jenkins stated that she has two individuals who are interested in the Sojourner 
Douglas college program. She is currently working on the transportation aspect for those 
who wish to attend the college. Ms. Jenkins is also working on getting the Fannie Lou Hamer 
Scholarship information to stewards. 
 
Mary Ellen Turner, Resident Services Manager, stated that she worked with Venus Bradford 
on two Home Buyer seminars which were attended by over 30 people. Currently she is 
coordinating a senior’s clinic for all HACA senior citizens. Over 40 people attended the 
Harbour House/Eastport Terrace Resident Council meeting. The meeting offered free cell 
phones to those in attendance. A food drop is being planned with the Chesapeake Christian 
Fellowship for May. Food will be delivered to all HACA residents as well as residents in 
Obery Court. A new adult computer class is being coordinated to begin in May. 

  
Finance & Administration Report 
 

Sharon Land, Director of Finance & Administration, stated that the staff has been working on 
PHAS assessments. The staff is also working on two grants, one of which will is a ROSS 
Grant for the Morris H. Blum Senior Apartments; the other is for an HCV service coordinator.  
Additionally, staff met with 3 vendors who are interested in updating HACA’s website.  
 
Occupancy Report 
 

Miranda Wingate, Director of Affordable Housing, indicated she is working with Ms. Sherrod 
in creating a baseline for property managers and the Robinwood ROSS Grant coordinator.   
 
Ms. Venus Bradford stated that she held 2 Homeowner orientation workshops.  Attendees 
included public housing residents, Housing Choice Voucher recipients, and a staff member. 
Several speakers gave information on how to prepare for becoming a homeowner.    
 
Commissioner Johnson and Commissioner Henderson stated that the recently distributed 
Commissioners Guide does not allow time limits for residents and suggested that HACA 
exercise caution. Chairman Snowden stated that HACA is encouraging residents to use the 
Pathways to Opportunities Program so that they can move out of public housing within a 
reasonable period of time.  
 

MIN - 4 



Safety Report 

 

Chief Joseph Johnson stated that he is impressed with the number of calls with concise 
information received by APD with regards to the recent stabbing.  Chief also stated that he 
attended training on PHAS and learned a great deal of information at the training sessions.   
 
New Business:    
 

Ms. Jeanne Charleston of the Department of Family & Community Medicine solicited 
community members to lead walking groups.  The groups will prepare for a walking tour of 
the Underground Railroad path while focusing on their health. 
 
The next Board meeting will be held at 4:30 p.m. on April 10th at the Morris H. Blum Senior 
Apartments multi-purpose room.   
 
The Public Board Meeting adjourned at 5:57 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 

__________________ 
Carl Snowden, Chair   
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MIN - 5 


